

Ark Castledown Primary Academy

EQUALITY POLICY



CONTENTS

1	INTRODUCTION	3
2	AIMS AND VALUES	3
3	OUR APPROACH TO PROMOTING EQUALITY	5
4	RACE EQUALITY	6
5	DISABILITY EQUALITY	6
6	GENDER EQUALITY	8
7	BEHAVIOUR AND BULLYING	9
8	RELIGION AND BELIEFS	9
9	ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES	10
10	EQUALITY INFORMATION AND OBJECTIVES	12
11	OUR MAIN EQUALITY CHALLENGES	12
12	RECORD OF EQUALITY CONSIDERATIONS WHEN MAKING DECISIONS	14
13	OUR EQUALITY OBJECTIVES	15
14	INFORMATION ABOUT OUR EMPLOYEES	15
15	EOUALITY IMPACT STATEMENT	18

1 INTRODUCTION

- 1.1 This policy is in line with and according to the 2010 Equality Act.
- 1.2 At ARK Castledown Primary Academy we pride ourselves on the diversity of people who make up our Academy community; and we value the varied contribution that everyone can make to our learning. We believe that all children, regardless of race, sex, or class, or disability can have high aims and that the Academy's task is to help them all achieve their potential. In order to achieve this, we shall ensure that all areas of the curriculum are suitably resourced in ways that reflect the range of cultures and that encourage children to respect each others' languages and background.
- 1.3 We shall similarly encourage parents/carers to share their children's experiences and to offer their own as an aid and encouragement to learning. We will confront and discuss racist and sexist language or conduct; and through the positive enforcement of our Behaviour Policy we will do our best to ensure that all individuals in the Academy, including visitors, feel safe and are treated with consideration when they are amongst us.
- 1.4 This Equality Policy sets out the Academy's approach to promoting equality and diversity. It covers disability, gender and race/ethnicity, in response to the statutory duties on academies to publish disability and gender equality schemes and a race equality policy

2 AIMS AND VALUES

2.1 Equality of opportunity at ARK Castledown Primary Academy is about providing equality and excellence for all in order to promote the highest possible standards of achievement. Equality of opportunity applies to all members of the Academy community — pupils, staff, governors and parents/carers. Our Equality Policy is based on the following core values, as expressed in the Academy's aims and in line with the 2010 Equality Act.

2.2 We want all our children to:

- a Experience a broad and balanced curriculum.
- b Develop lively enquiring minds and a love of learning.
- c Have high self esteem.
- d Work with independence.
- e Value and care for others.
- f Be successful.
- g Have their achievements celebrated.
- h Feel safe.

- i Become good citizens.
- Become positive contributors to the international community.
- k Care for their environment.
- l Be self-disciplined and courteous.
- m Be tolerant and respectful of others.

2.3 We want all staff to:

- a Continue raising our high standards of teaching and learning.
- b Develop professionally.
- c Feel valued and supported.
- d Be successful.
- e Have job satisfaction.
- f Enjoy a healthy work-life balance.

2.4 We want all parents/carers to:

- a Feel welcomed by the Academy.
- b Work in partnership with staff.
- c Be well informed by clear communications.

2.5 We want governors to:

- a Work as friends and partners of the Academy.
- b Know the Academy and staff well.
- c Offer constructive advice.
- d Promote the Academy in the wider community.

2.6 We want the wider community to:

- a Develop good relations with our Academy.
- b Broaden our horizons and challenge our thinking.

We aim to encourage a love of learning and make every day a rewarding experience for children and staff.

2.7 We aim to help children:

- a To develop lively, enquiring minds with the ability to question and argue rationally.
- b To acquire knowledge, skills and understanding.

- c To use language and numbers with confidence and enthusiasm.
- d To develop respect for religious and moral values and tolerance towards ways of life which differ from their own
- e To understand the world in which they live and the interdependence of individuals, groups and nations.
- f To respect and care for other people and the environment.
- g To grow in aesthetic awareness and make best use of opportunities for the creativity and imagination.
- h To develop agility and physical co-ordination and the ability to express themselves through music and movement.
- i To develop habits of self-discipline, acceptable behaviour, courtesy and good manners.

2.8 We guide each child towards fulfilling their potential:

- a Through the provision of high quality education and resources.
- b Through encouragement and high expectation.
- c By developing self-esteem and fostering self-confidence.
- d By providing a happy and safe environment in which he/she may work confidently.
- e By ensuring progression through the setting of appropriate goals.
- f By preparing him/her for future education and a fulfilling life.

2.9 Our mission is for ARK Castledown Primary Academy to provide an environment where:

- a Children are happy and highly motivated to learn.
- b The quality of teaching and learning enables each child to achieve their best.
- c Staff are motivated and keen to develop their skills for the sake of the children and their own professional development.
- d Parents/carers are proud to send their children and enjoy working in partnership with the Academy.
- 2.10 These aims are designed to ensure that the Academy meets the needs of all, taking account of gender, ethnicity, culture, religion, language, disability, ability, sexual orientation, age, and social circumstances. We strive to include and engage all pupils and to prepare them for full participation in a diverse society. This Academy will take steps to:
 - a Promote equality of opportunity and access.
 - b Promote racial equality and good race relations.
 - c Oppose all forms of prejudice and negative discrimination.
 - d Ensure pupils with a disability have access to the Academy buildings and to the curriculum.

3 OUR APPROACH TO PROMOTING EQUALITY

3.1 The information provided here aims to show that we give careful consideration to equality issues in

- everything that we do. We are committed to working for the equality of people with and without disabilities.
- 3.2 The overall objective of the Academy's Equality Policy is to provide a framework for us to pursue our equality duties to eliminate unlawful discrimination and harassment; promote equality of opportunity; and promote good relations and positive attitudes between people of diverse backgrounds in all our activities.
- 3.3 Through the Equality Policy, the Academy seeks to ensure that no member of the Academy community or any other person through their contact with the Academy receives less favourable treatment on any grounds which cannot be shown to be justified. This covers race, colour, nationality, ethnic or national origin, religion or belief, gender, marital status, responsibility for children or other dependants, disability, sexual orientation, gender reassignment, age, trade union or political activities and socioeconomic background. The principles of this policy apply to all members of the extended Academy community

4 RACE EQUALITY

We are fully committed to meeting our obligations under the 2010 Equality Act and this is reflected in the policy statements above. To meet the specific duties of the Act we shall:

- a Ensure that all pupils and staff are encouraged and able to achieve the best of which they are capable.
- b Respect, embrace and value differences between people.
- c Prepare pupils for life in a diverse society.
- d Make the Academy a place where everyone, taking account of race, colour, ethnic or national origin, feels welcomed and valued.
- e Promote good relations between different racial and cultural groups within the Academy and within the wider community.
- f Ensure that an inclusive ethos is maintained.
- g Acknowledge the existence of racism and take steps to prevent it.
- h Oppose all forms of racism, racial prejudice and racial harassment.
- i Be proactive in tackling and eliminating unlawful discrimination.

5 DISABILITY EQUALITY

- 5.1 We aim to ensure that wherever possible disabled people have the same opportunities as others in their access to education and to prevent any form of unlawful discrimination on the grounds of disability. Appropriate measures will be taken to ensure that pupils and prospective pupils with a disability are not treated less favourably than other pupils and we shall take reasonable steps to avoid putting disabled pupils at a substantial disadvantage.
- 5.2 In addition, steps will be taken to ensure that employees support the governing body in meeting their duties and do not act in such a way that is or could be deemed discriminatory.

- 5.3 Staff are made aware of the basic requirements of the 2010 Equality Act.
- 5.4 There may be occasions where the treatment of disabled children is different from that of other pupils. In such cases the Academy will be able to demonstrate that such treatment is justified. The reason for the different treatment will be both material to the circumstances of the particular case and substantial (e.g. health and safety reasons). The Academy will also demonstrate that all reasonable steps have been taken to avoid the disabled pupil being placed at a significant disadvantage. Where at all possible we will do all that we can to ensure that all disabled children can access the curriculum and participate in activities and trips.
- 5.5 Careful consideration will be given to how participation can be best facilitated. A range of factors may be part of this consideration including:
 - a The need to maintain academic, musical, sporting and other standards.
 - b Health and safety requirements.
 - c The interest of other pupils.
 - d The extent to which it is practicable to take a particular course of action.
 - e The financial resources available and the cost of a particular action.
- 5.6 The consideration of these factors may lead to the adoption of certain reasonable adjustments rather than others.
- 5.7 We recognise that the duty to make reasonable adjustments for disabled students is anticipatory. To meet this duty we will review policies, practices and procedures to ensure that we do not discriminate against disabled pupils. Examples of the specific measures we will be taking include:
 - a Ensuring providers of facilities for academy trips and extra-curricular activities can accommodate disabled pupils before making bookings.
 - b Reviewing staffing arrangements to ensure that the Academy is in a position to administer medication if required in exceptional circumstances.
 - c Ensuring there are special arrangements in place for disabled pupils who are taking examinations.
 - d Ensuring all our policies and procedures have due regard for disability equality.
 - e Working closely with parents/carers and disabled pupils to identify potential barriers to participation and devising reasonable adjustments to overcome them.
 - f Ensuring that staff are briefed on the Equality Act 2010.
- 5.8 We will also take reasonable steps to find out whether prospective or existing pupils have a disability. This will include:
 - a Creating an ethos and culture which is open and welcoming so that parents/carers and pupils feel comfortable sharing information about the disability.
 - b Asking parents/carers during the admissions process about the existence of any disability.

- c Providing continuing opportunities to share information (e.g. when seeking permission to go on an academy trip).
- d Monitoring levels of participation, achievement and behaviour that may indicate a disability that has not been identified and referring the matter to specialist agencies where appropriate.
- 5.9 We believe that improving access to education and educational achievement for all:
 - a Ensures equality of opportunity.
 - b Encourages full participation in society.
 - c Improves the likelihood of independent living and economic self-sufficiency in the future.

.

- 5.10 We carry out accessibility planning for disabled pupils that increases the extent to which they can participate in the curriculum, improves the physical environment of the academy and increases the availability of accessible information to disabled pupils (see the Academy's Disability Equality duty attached to the Pupil Support Policy, for further details).
- 5.11 We shall continue to improve the accessibility of the physical environment within the resources available in response to needs arising. We identify and monitor the performance of different groups of pupils: boys/girls; minority ethnic groups; SEN; disabled pupils; "Looked After Children"; EAL; chronic medical conditions.
- 5.12 Our assessment procedures take into account the SEN Code of Practice (2001) the needs of EAL pupils and the needs of minority ethnic pupils. We have procedures for involving all pupils in their own learning and we monitor this involvement and the outcomes.

6 GENDER EQUALITY

- 6.1 The Academy promotes equality of opportunity between males and females and endeavours to eliminate all unlawful sex discrimination and harassment. Conditions for learning (e.g. environment, teaching and learning, resources, social and emotional aspects of learning) provide equal access and opportunities to all.
- 6.2 We monitor the attainment of all our pupils by gender. We take a "Which boys? Which girls?" approach to address underachievement: neither boys nor girls are treated as homogeneous groups. We set targets to improve the attainment and rates of progress of particular groups of boys and girls.
- 6.3 We are identifying and addressing barriers to the participation of boys and girls in activities.
- 6.4 We ensure that gender stereotypes in subject choices, careers advice and work experience are avoided. We ensure that young people have access to information about different sector workplaces and occupations to challenge outdated images and ideas about careers and employment.

- 6.5 We work in partnership with other organisations, including FE and HE institutions, to develop innovative and inventive ways of tackling gender segregation in subject and career choice.
- 6.6 We are developing particular initiatives to tackle boys' attitudes to school and learning, for example by engaging with fathers and drawing them into academy life.
- 6.7 Parents, carers and families are given opportunities to contribute to the development, delivery and evaluation of the academy's gender equality initiatives. Both male and female parents and carers are encouraged to be involved in the work of the academy and contribute to their children's learning and progress.

6.8 Gender Assignment and Sexual orientation

- a We challenge all discrimination and prejudice towards gay, lesbian and bisexual members of the Academy.
- b We promote acceptance and understanding of these groups through such things as assemblies.
- c We do not collect data on these groups currently.

7 BEHAVIOUR AND BULLYING

- 7.1 We have a behaviour policy that is equitable and consistent in its aims and procedure
- 7.2 We have an anti-bullying policy that provides clear guidance on creating equal opportunity.
- 7.3 We deal promptly and effectively with all incidents and complaints of bullying and harassment that may include cyber-bullying and prejudice-based bullying related to disability or special educational need, ethnicity and race, gender, gender reassignment, pregnancy or maternity, religion and belief and sexual orientation. We keep a record of all such incidents and notify those affected of what action we have taken. We provide training to all staff in relation to dealing with bullying and harassment incidents.

8 RELIGION AND BELIEFS

- 8.1 ARK Castledown Primary Academy promotes the spiritual, moral, social and cultural development of all pupils through whole academy assemblies and the curriculum.
- 8.2 Our curriculum, including RE, supports pupils to be accepting of one another's lifestyles and beliefs, as well as exploring shared values.

Head of School 01.09.17

- 8.3 The RE curriculum enables pupils to develop respect for others, including people with different faiths and beliefs, and helps to challenge prejudice and discrimination.
- 8.4 We tackle prejudices relating to racism and xenophobia, including those that are directed towards religious groups and communities, such as anti-Semitism and Islamaphobia.

9 ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

All who work in the Academy have a responsibility for promoting equality and inclusion, and avoiding unfair discrimination.

9.1 Our governors are responsible for:

- a Making sure the Academy complies with all current equality legislation.
- b Making sure this policy and its procedures are followed.

9.2 The Headteacher is responsible for:

- a Ensuring this policy is readily available and that the governors, staff, pupils and their parents/carers know about it.
- b Making sure its procedures are followed.
- c Producing regular information for staff and governors about the policy, its effectiveness and providing training for them on the policy, if necessary.
- d Ensuring all staff know their responsibilities and receive training and support in carrying these
- e Taking appropriate action in cases of harassment and discrimination.

9.3 All our staff are responsible for:

- a Dealing with racist, sexist and homophobic incidents, and being able to recognise and tackle bias and stereotyping.
- b Promoting equality and good community relations and avoiding discrimination against anyone for reasons of race, colour, nationality, ethnic or national origins, gender, disability, religion or belief, sexual orientation or socio-economic circumstances.
- c Engaging in training and learning opportunities.

9.4 Responsibility for overseeing equality practices in the Academy is as follows:

- a Coordinating and monitoring work on equality issues (Headteacher/Deputy Head/Inclusion Manager).
- b Dealing with and monitoring reports of harassment, including racist and homophobic incidents (Headteacher/Deputy Head).

- c Monitoring the progress and attainment of vulnerable groups of pupils e.g. Black and minority ethnic pupils, including Gypsies and Travellers (Headteacher/Deputy Head/Inclusion Manager).
- d Monitoring exclusions (Headteacher/Deputy Head).

10 EQUALITY INFORMATION AND OBJECTIVES

The Equality Act 2010 requires us to publish information that demonstrates that we have due regard for the need to:

- a Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct prohibited by the Equality Act 2010.
- b **Advance equality of opportunity** between people who share a protected characteristic and people who do not share it.
- c **Foster good relations** between people who share a protected characteristic and people who do not share it.

11 OUR MAIN EQUALITY CHALLENGES

This is a summary of the issues that we are most concerned about. We are already developing strategies and interventions to tackle some of these concerns.

Progress and achievement is our central concern and is a major equality issue

Our primary concern is that all individuals, irrespective of their background, make outstanding academic progress in order that they can secure good qualifications and have the choice to go to university or pursue a career of their choice. Given the low starting point many of our pupils start at, they are required to make exceptional progress to 'close their gap' on their contemporaries who come from more privileged backgrounds. Without this progress they will not have the equality of opportunity to choose university or a particular career.

Given this, we have a great deal of strategies to address this, some of which are detailed below:

- Compulsory enrichment classes for all pupils who have fallen behind in either maths, English, science or MFL.
- Track and assess progress 6 times a year in the core subjects and three times a year in the foundation subjects.
- Analyse progress data of individuals and the various discrete groups and then write evaluations and create action plans at a key stage level and school level, in order that no one falls through the net.
- Reading classes every morning for every pupil to boost literacy and engender a love of reading. These
 groups are organised according to reading skills and abilities.
- Plan using the end point as our starting point. In other words, we think about the skills and knowledge our pupils will need at GCSE and A level and start planning towards this.
- Planned interventions for pupils who are making insufficient progress or who are failing to meet the required standards.
- Provide interventions for pupils who are facing difficulties at home or are struggling with their

behaviour.

High quality of teaching from all teachers is a central equality issue

Given this area of concern we have to ensure a high quality of teaching and learning across every key stage/class and every member of staff. An academy which hopes to secure excellent outcomes for all is an academy which must ensure that every teacher is consistently teaching lessons of a high quality and every pupil can be sure of having an equal opportunity of achieving a good level or grade and make excellent progress. This is a real challenge but a very important one. In short, every pupil should expect to have the same chance of securing a good grade no matter who teaches them maths, English, science or indeed any subject they follow.

We do this through the following:

- Embedding co-planning within key stages/year groups/classes, so that all teachers learn together and this can ensure consistent and high quality resources and activities.
- Embed a culture of learning from one another. Everyone observes everyone: Senior staff, middle leaders, main scale teachers and NQTs. This fosters a dialogue about teaching and learning amongst all staff and creates a desire to always get better.
- Training for staff is part of our weekly cycle and the focus is of course: teaching and learning.
- A mentoring programme for colleagues whose teaching is judged to require improvement.
- Analysis of attainments and progress across and within key stages/year groups/phases (ETAL). Every key stage lead/class teacher has to analyse their progress and attainment data on a termly basis and plan to address any gaps or areas for development. This may of course mean providing more support for individual pupils and/or teachers.

Exemplary standards of behaviour are a central equality issue

Whilst teaching and learning is our primary concern, we also have to ensure that behaviour is exemplary in all lessons in order that everyone's equal opportunity to learn and make progress is not hampered. No child can be allowed to behave in a way that prevents others from learning. Without this expectation being made clear and realised there can be no equality of opportunity for all to learn.

However, we are also keen to ensure that no group is discriminated through disproportionate and unfair sanctions or rewards. Therefore, there will need to be close analysis of rewards and sanction, including exclusion figures. As an academy we are determined that no groups or individual pupil is discriminated against or treated unfairly through harsh treatment or lack of reward.

Therefore, we have two challenges: maintain excellent standards of behaviour whilst supporting all children in making appropriate decisions about how to behave, whilst being scrupulously fair and just in dealing with all

children. We are very successful in these aims but it requires a great deal of hard work and the answer is not simply to avoid punishing certain pupils because they come from certain groups. This would not be equal or fair. The answer is to put support mechanisms and systems in place to encourage good behaviours and prevent bad ones. This of course, is true for all pupils. Some of our strategies are as follows:

- A comprehensive duty system so pupils are supervised throughout the academy day.
- A zero tolerance sanction system which is cumulative, inevitable and swift but fair.
- A comprehensive rewards system which embed our core values.
- An Inclusion team who support our young people and help them to express and deal with their emotions and difficulties.
- An analysis of all sanctions and rewards data by individual pupil, discrete group, teacher, key stage, achievement level.

12 RECORD OF EQUALITY CONSIDERATIONS WHEN MAKING DECISIONS

The Equality Act 2010 requires us to show due regard to equality issues when we make significant decisions or changes in our policies (See Table 8). This means we need to consider what the impact of those decisions or policies will be on pupils and staff with protected characteristics before a decision is made or a policy is finalised.

Date	Policy or decision	Equality issues we considered	Action taken or changes made
On- going	Evaluation of teaching and learning (ETAL)	The academic progress of all discrete groups. Are there any groups who are making significantly less progress than others in particular subjects? What can be done within key stages and across the Academy to address these issues?	Every key stage /year group/class teacher is required to analyse the progress data of all individual pupils and the progress made by different groups. Where there are different levels of progress between one group and another, heads of key stage /teachers/phase leaders are asked to give possible explanations for this and then write an action plan about how to tackle this and ensure that no group falls behind. This required data booklets to be published in order that the data was available and the analysis and planning was the focus for heads of key stage/phase leaders and teachers. Training about how to analyse all data was made part of line management. These ETALs are then shared across the academy in order that strategies to secure high levels of achievement for all are disseminated. The Primary Head has also used the key stageal/phase ETALs to inform staff training and highlight any issues which need addressing.

Table 8 – Equality issue considerations on significant decisions or policy changes

13 OUR EQUALITY OBJECTIVES

The Equality Act 2010 requires us to publish specific and measurable equality objectives. Our equality objectives are based on our analysis of data and other information. Our equality objectives focus on those areas where we have agreed to take action to improve equality and tackle disadvantages. We will regularly review the progress we are making to meet our equality objectives.

13.1 Equality objective:

- a Ensure that high quality teaching secures good progress for all and that no particular group falls behind in terms of their average levels of progress in any given subject.
- b All pupils are targeted to make two or three sublevels progress across an academic year. This compares with the national average rate of progress which stands at 1.5 sublevels.

13.2 Progress we are making on this objective:

The process of analysing progress data is now firmly embedded in the rhythm of the academy year. Staff have all been given training, as part of line management, in the forensic analysis of this data. Senior Leaders/phase leaders/teachers have to study the progress and attainment of individual pupils and discrete groups within their subject area. Where there are anomalies questions are asked and explanations considered. An action plan is then written to address any issues where a particular group might be making significantly less average levels of progress than other groups. All of these key stageal/phase ETALs are shared across the academy to share thinking and good practice.

14 INFORMATION ABOUT OUR EMPLOYEES

If we have more than 150 employees we are required to publish information about them. This information aims to provide a profile of our academy workforce, as well as our employment practices and achievements.

14.1 Confidentiality

Guarantees of confidentiality are given to all staff who provide monitoring information or who take part in staff surveys. Names and data are anonymised and we observe the convention not to report where there are ten or fewer respondents in any grouping.

As of 1st September 2014 the academy employs 72 staff. Our staff are employed in the following main groups:

a Teaching staff.

- b Administrative and other related posts.
- c Support staff.
- d Grounds, kitchen and cleaning staff.

14.2 Age (See Table 9)

	Count of Employees	%
Under 25	3	4.2
25-29	2	2.8
30-34	12	16.7
35-39	9	12.5
40-44	12	16.6
45-49	11	15.3
50-54	7	9.7
55-59	13	18
60 and over	3	4.2
Grand Total	72	100

Table 9 – Employee age statistics

14.3 Disability (See Table 10)

	No of employees	%
YES		
NO	72	100
No information provided		
Grand Total	72	100

Table 10 – Employee disability statistics

14.4 Gender (See Table 11)

	Count of Employees	0/0
F	63	87.5
M	9	12.5

Grand Total	72	100
-------------	----	-----

Table 11 – Employee gender statistics

14.5 Ethnicity and race (See Table 12)

	Count of Employees	%
Any Other Asian Background		
Any Other Black Background		
Any other mixed ethnic background		
Any Other White Background	1	1.4
Asian and white		
Black African		
Black African and white		
Black Caribbean		
Black Caribbean and white		
Indian		
Information Not Yet Obtained	61	84.8
Prefer not to Answer		
White British	10	13.8
White Irish		
(blank)		
Grand Total	72	100

Table 12 – Employee ethnicity statistics

14.6 Religion and belief (See Table 13)

	Count of Employees
Buddhism	
Christian	
Hinduism	
Islam	
Not religious	
Unknown	
Not obtained	72
Grand Total	72

Table 13 – Employee religious beliefs statistics

15 EQUALITY IMPACT STATEMENT

We will do all we can to ensure that this policy does not discriminate, directly or indirectly. We shall do this through regular monitoring and evaluation of our policies. On review we shall assess and consult relevant stakeholders on the likely impact of our policies on the promotion of all aspects of equality, as laid down in the Equality Act (2010). This will include, but not necessarily be limited to: race; gender; sexual orientation; disability; ethnicity; religion; cultural beliefs and pregnancy/maternity. We will use an appropriate Equality Impact Assessment to monitor the impact of all our policies and the policy may be amended as a result of this assessment.